



## **Consultant Handbook**

## Welcome!

Congratulations – we're glad you have joined Advanced Group! Whether you've just begun an assignment with Advanced Group, or if you've been working with us for a while, we're delighted that you've chosen to join our organization. Advanced Group has a reputation for excellence in service, expertise in our field, and talented people. We sincerely hope you'll take pride in being an important part of Advanced Group's success.

Please review the policies contained in this handbook, your guide to your employment relationship at Advanced Group. The handbook is not intended to be comprehensive or to address all the possible applications of, or exceptions to, the general policies and procedures described within. If you have any questions or concerns regarding the meaning or application of any policy or if you need additional information, contact your Recruiter.

The Company reserves the right at any time, in its sole discretion, to change, modify, add, revoke, suspend or terminate any or all of the policies contained in this Handbook. Notice of changes will be provided in writing, including electronic communications.

Welcome to Advanced Group!

Leo Sheridan CEO, Advanced Group

## Contents

Foreword5
Employment at Will
Advanced Group Businesses
Mission, Purpose, Vision and Values9
Code of Conduct
Experience Excellence
Talent Communities11
Connect on Social Media11
Updating Your LinkedIn Profile
Preparing for Your Assignment
New Assignment Checklist
Labor Law Postings
Dress for Success
Personal Belongings
Referrals
Rewards
Pay Procedures and Timekeeping13
Timecard Entry Policy14
Meal and Rest Breaks15
Lactation Breaks15
Attendance Policy
Benefits
401k17
Ending an Assignment & Unemployment17
Separation of Employment/Return of Company Property17
Leave Policies
Paid Sick Leave
Bereavement Leave21
Medical/Personal Leave of Absence
Leave for Victims of Felony Crimes21
Leave for Victims of Domestic Violence & Sexual Assault

Civic Duties	22
Commitment to Diversity	23
Equal Employment Opportunity	23
Pay Transparency Non-Discrimination Provision (Federal Contractors Only)	24
Disabilities, Pregnancy and Reasonable Accommodation	24
Nondiscrimination and Anti-Harassment Policy	25
Human Rights Policy	26
Anti-Bribery Policy	27
Complaint Procedure	27
Workplace Safety	
Safety on the Job	
Drug- and Alcohol-Free Workplace	29
Workplace Violence Prevention	29
Commitment to Safety	
Use of Social Media	
Employment Verification	
Appendix A	
Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA)	
Appendix B	
California Employee Provisions	
Meal Periods	
Rest Periods	
Overtime	
School Leave (Suspension)	
Time Off for School Activities	
Civic Duties	
Leave for Victims of Crime, Domestic Violence & Sexual Assault	
California Family Rights Act (CFRA)	
Pregnancy Disability Leave (PDL)	
Consultant Handbook Acknowledgment & Receipt	43

## Foreword

This handbook applies to the employees (as described below) of the following Advanced Group businesses (in alphabetical order):

Advanced Clinical LLC Catena Solutions LLC WunderLand Group LLC

Your employment relationship is solely with the business that employs you and that is identified on your pay stub and is referred to in this handbook as "Company." These obligations belong to your employer and are not joint and several with any of the other companies of the Advanced Group.

This handbook is applicable to an employee of Company (i) who is employed as a member of the Company's contingent workforce, (ii) who is identified as an "External Employee" in the Company's human resource information system, and (iii) whose compensation is regularly processed through the Company's payroll system under an External Employee pay group. This handbook governs employees who meet this definition and for the purposes of this handbook are individually referred to as "Consultant".

If a Consultant's classification as an External Employee is unclear, their classification shall be subject to the sole judgment and discretion of the Advanced Group's Human Resources Department, and any and all disputes with respect to such classification shall be finally and conclusively determined by the Advanced Group's Chief Executive Officer or their designee. This classification is not meant to supersede any classification or definition contained in any Advanced Group benefit plan.

As part of your employment with Company, you will be assigned to Company or Company's clients on a temporary basis. Regardless of such assignment you will be employed solely by the Company and not by Company's client or a third party workplace. For the avoidance of doubt, your employer is the employer set forth in your pay stub.

In addition to the policies of Company and the terms of this Handbook, you also are required to comply with all rules, policies and procedures of Company's client to which you are assigned. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Handbook or other Company polices and the client policies, please contact Human Resources.

The Company reserves the right at any time, in its sole discretion, to change, modify, add, revoke, suspend or terminate any or all of the policies contained in this Handbook, with or without notices. The only exception is the policy of at-will employment which can be changed only by a writing signed by the CEO of the Company and the employee. Generally, employees will be notified of any changes in writing, including via e-mail.

For Consultants hired on or after September 1, 2020, as a condition of employment, the Consultant will be required to acknowledge and sign the Company's arbitration policy and procedure, which will be presented to the Consultant as a stand-alone agreement for review and execution. Consultants may opt out of the arbitration agreement by following the procedure described in the policy.

Nothing in this Handbook is intended to interfere with a Consultant's rights under any applicable federal or state laws, including the right to engage in protected concerted activities under the National Labor

Relations Act such as communications about wages, hours and terms and conditions of employment. To the extent anything in this Handbook conflicts with any applicable federal, state or local law, the terms of that law will control.

Except as otherwise noted herein, the information in this Handbook supersedes and replaces all prior Handbooks, policies and procedures, except for policies and procedures set forth in any written agreement signed by the Company's Chief Executive Officer or the Head of HR.

## **Employment at Will**

A Consultant is considered employed by the Company when they begin an assignment and for the duration of the assignment. Employment at the Company is on an at-will basis unless otherwise stated in a written individual employment agreement signed by the CEO of the Company and the employee.

This means that either you or the Company may terminate the employment relationship at any time, for any reason, with or without notice, unless another arrangement is made in writing and signed by the Company's Chief Executive Officer or the Head of HR. No other representative of the Company has the authority to take any action, either expressly or implied or by conduct, which in any way modifies the atwill nature of the employment relationship.

Nothing in this handbook is intended to or creates an employment agreement, express or implied. Nothing contained in this document is intended to be, nor should it be, construed as a contract that employment or any benefit will be continued for any period of time.

Nothing in this statement is intended to interfere with, restrain, or prevent concerted activity as protected by the National Labor Relations Act. Such activity includes Consultant communications regarding wages, hours, or other terms or conditions of employment. Consultants protected by the Act have the right to engage in or refrain from such activities.

### **Advanced Group Businesses**

The Advanced Group is comprised of 5 distinct brands, referred to as businesses.



Our family of brands helps our clients and our talent to grow and achieve their professional goals, offering contingent and permanent staffing solutions, talent acquisition and management, consulting, outsourcing, and professional services. We are dedicated to advancing careers and companies.

<u>Advanced Group</u> leverages over 30 years of expertise in talent acquisition, staffing, and outsourcing solutions to operate the Advanced Group family of brands. Led by Leo Sheridan, President and CEO, the Advanced Group provides corporate services such as Human Resources, Finance & Accounting, IT, and Legal to each of our brands, supporting the success of their clients and talent.



# 

After 30+ years of helping organizations solve their workforce challenges, our <u>Catena Solutions</u> brand was born out of a desire to support clients through COVID and help them through all the challenges that surfaced as the world was disrupted. Today, Catena Solutions supports supply chain organizations with their business initiatives including digital, financial, human capital, and supply chain transformations. We do so by providing consulting resources for knowledge gaps as well as interim support for business continuance.

Our success is driven by our ability to build meaningful relationships. We believe an engaged and satisfied workforce allows us to better serve our clients, fosters creativity, and creates a healthy work environment. These relationships are what guides our mission: by placing our team, clients, and consultants first, every day we make a difference in the way global supply chains operate.





<u>Advanced Clinical</u> supports the life sciences industry with three core services that are customized to fit our life sciences client outsourcing strategies:

- Full-service CRO capabilities
- Functional Services Provider (FSP) strategies
- On-demand staffing solutions (contract, contract-to-hire, and direct-hire)

Advanced Clinical was founded in 1994 with a very simple goal: to provide staffing and consultative support for Chicagoland pharmaceutical companies. Our senior-level consultants successfully enhanced our clients' resources for clinical research projects, and before long, a national, 120-year-old, \$30B pharmaceutical company requested our services for innovative outsourcing solutions in data management. This event was the genesis of our first CRO service offering.

Our evolution continued, and today we have global representation around the world. Advanced Clinical provides full-service CRO, FSP, Strategic Resourcing, and Quality/Validation services. Our employees average 10 years of experience in the life sciences industry and are efficient at utilizing state-of-the-art tools and intelligence.



## wunderland

#### The Destination for Talent

Founded in 2009, <u>WunderLand</u> is a destination for people in the creative communications, design, and marketing space. We source, interview and represent top web designers & developers, graphic designers, art directors, creative directors, UX designers, social media specialists, writers, branding consultants, mobile app developers, project managers, SEO specialists and more, matching them with companies on a temporary/contract basis, or for a full-time staff opening.

WunderLand began with a very simple goal—to match highly vetted and qualified talent with jobs that solve our clients' unique digital, creative, and marketing challenges. We've been flying high ever since. What started in Chicago as a simple goal is now a full-scale reality. WunderLand has a loyal client base from coast to coast, servicing San Francisco, Seattle, New York, New Jersey, Connecticut, Rhode Island, and Boston.





<u>Advanced RPO</u> is a full service Recruitment Process Outsourcing solutions provider. We empower our clients to break through mediocre hiring to "win bigger" with better talent. Advanced RPO becomes immersed in each client's culture, becoming an extension of their HR teams to create synergistic, responsive recruitment models that impact business results.

Effective hiring entails more than just filling positions faster and cheaper. It's about thriving in today's fast-paced, talent-driven economy. Advanced RPO strengthens their clients' competitive positioning by helping them create superior, more productive workforces.



## Mission, Purpose, Vision and Values

#### Mission

To make a difference, every day, for our clients, our candidates, each other, and our communities.

#### Purpose

We work to make a difference and contribute to a better future for all the lives we touch.

#### Vision

To be the most respected firm in our industries.

#### Values

Great companies are built on a foundation of trusted relationships. At Advanced Group, this is what makes us unique and successful. Our values shape our culture. They guide the way we do business, they inspire us to draw strength from each other, and they and enable us to deliver outstanding value.

Our core values are REAL!

- Ensure deep <u>**Respect**</u> for people
- Promote a consistent culture of **Excellence**
- Be <u>Accountable</u>
- Demonstrate Leadership in all that we do

## **Respect**

We treat our customers, our communities, and each other with respect by recognizing the value in their contributions and importance of diversity.

We appreciate each other and treat everyone with compassion and understanding.

## Excellence

We are passionate about people, process, and service excellence. We serve our customers through dedication, innovation, and continuous improvement.

For us, Excellence is not only a value; it is a discipline and a means for making the world a better place.

## Accountability

We deliver our very best in all we do, holding ourselves and each other accountable for exceptional results.

We meet our commitments to our customers, our community, and each other.

## Leadership

We build open and honest relationships with communication.

We challenge ourselves to be the best we can be, while inspiring others to reach their full potential.

## **Code of Conduct**

The Company's Code of Conduct sets forth the basic standards of behavior to guide all Consultants, who must conduct themselves in accordance with these principles and standards.

The key to the Company's success is creating trust and respect for each other and our clients. The most fundamental way to earn respect is to adhere to the highest of ethical business practices at all times. Our ethical conduct includes, but is not limited to, the following:

- Act with respect, welcoming and supporting people from all backgrounds
- Maintain honesty and integrity, avoiding conflicts of interest in personal and professional relationships
- Comply with all applicable foreign, federal, state, and local government rules and regulations.
- Act in good faith, responsibly, with care and diligence without misrepresenting facts
- Provide others with information that is accurate, complete, objective, and relevant
- Promote ethical behavior as a responsible partner among peers in the work environment and the community
- Respect the confidentiality of information acquired in the course of one's work unless required to disclose by law or pursuant to court order or lawfully subpoena. Any such court orders or subpoenas should be forwarded to and handled by management
- Refrain from using for personal gain, confidential information acquired in the course of one's work
- Be accountable for adhering to this Code

Violations of this Code of Conduct may result in disciplinary action, up to and including immediate termination of employment.

<u>Anti-Retaliation Provisions</u>: Be assured that no retaliation will be taken or tolerated against any Consultant who exercises their rights under our Consultant Handbook. If you feel that you have been the victim of any discrimination or retaliation, you are required to contact the head of the Company's HR, or another member of Company leadership with whom you feel comfortable discussing the matter, so that the matter can be promptly investigated and remedied as appropriate.

## **Experience Excellence**

#### **Talent Communities**

We want the relationship with the Company to last beyond your first assignment. Stay connected with industry information and new job opportunities through our various community channels. Get started by joining our Talent Community and/or follow us on LinkedIn.

**Communities for Advanced Clinical:** 

Talent Community LinkedIn

Communities for Catena Solutions: LinkedIn

Communities for WunderLand: LinkedIn

#### **Connect on Social Media**

Connect with us on Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter, Pinterest, YouTube, and Google+ for helpful career advice, job search tips and pointers, and company news. Be sure to follow us today!

#### **Updating Your LinkedIn Profile**

We know many people like to update their LinkedIn status and list their current position. Since most clients do not wish for their Consultant to list the client name on their LinkedIn pages, please use the following to display your current employment status:

«Consultant\_Title» for [Advanced Clinical, Catena Solutions or WunderLand] «Month» «Year» to present

#### **Preparing for Your Assignment**

Job readiness helps you make the most of your assignment and can help you feel more at home from the start. Here are some helpful hints for preparing for your assignment.

Feel free to research the company - If you are interested in learning more about the organization you will be assigned to, you can access tools such as the Internet, the library, and of course, your contact at Advanced.

Getting to and from work - When you are learning about an assignment you will be notified of the location of your assignment. If you are unfamiliar with the general area of the location where you are assigned, you may want to review directions, train and/or bus schedules to help ensure you report to work on time on your first day. Reference <a href="https://www.maps.google.com">www.maps.google.com</a> for exact directions.

#### **New Assignment Checklist**

Your Recruiter will provide you the following information when you start your new assignment:

- The company's name
- The location, hours, and estimated length of assignment
- The specific tasks you will be doing or job description for the role

- The name of the person to whom you report
- The dress code
- Any other details that will help you on your assignment

If you have questions about this information or would like some additional guidance, be sure to obtain additional information from your Recruiter.

#### Labor Law Postings

Advanced Group's Intranet Poster Program with GovDocs is an online tool that delivers the most current labor law postings. GovDocs automatically adds or updates postings whenever changes occur so you can access the most current federal, state, county, city postings. Access <u>the interactive map here</u> and select the state you are working in to view the applicable labor law postings.

#### **Dress for Success**

So, you're ready to start your new assignment. Are you dressed for success? Many of our clients have specific dress codes; however, the following guidelines apply universally, no matter where you will be working:

- Make-up and perfume/cologne should be applied tastefully, conservatively, and in a manner that does not detract from your professionalism.
- Jewelry may be worn but should not be excessive or unsafe. Depending on the nature of your assignment, you may need to remove or cover visible piercings.
- Nails should be clean.
- Hair should be clean and neatly coifed.

If applicable, you will be informed of each client's specific dress code when assignment details are discussed with you. Please note that some assignments may require professional work attire. If this is the case, appropriate professional work attire includes suits, blazers, slacks and/or professional dresses.

Consultants with individual needs associated with religious or cultural observance or disability should consult with their Recruiter to discuss possible accommodations prior to the start of your assignment.

#### **Personal Belongings**

The Company is not responsible for personal belongings left at an Advanced Group office or client site. We recommend that personal belongings brought to a client site be kept to a minimum.

If a Consultant's personal belongings are brought to our attention:

- We will obtain any belongings left at a client site post-assignment and will attempt to make arrangements for pick-up.
- We will make two attempts within the first week after picking up the items from the client to connect with the Consultant to arrange a pick-up time. The third and final attempt will state that we will give one additional week for pick-up before destroying the items.

## Referrals

Now that you know about all of our Advanced Group companies, you might be thinking of someone you know who is also searching for the next step in their career. After all, EVERYONE knows SOMEONE who is

looking for a new opportunity. We can help you help your network, friends and family. Not only will you feel great for sending them to Advanced, we'll reward you through our Referral rewards program.

Referring people is easy. If your contact has authorized you to share their name and contact information with us, please let your Recruiter know, or submit your referrals through our referral websites:

Refer a friend to Advanced Clinical Refer a friend to Catena Solutions Refer a friend to WunderLand

Please discuss the Referral rewards program directly with your Recruiter.

### Rewards

The Company offers a variety of rewards programs based on factors such as employment/assignment length, client recognition, etc. You will receive access to the Everything You Need to Know page once you are on assignment with the details on the rewards available to you. Ask your Recruiter or Operations Coordinator for more details.

Gift cards, or other cash-equivalent gifts are considered taxable income to an employee and will be included in the employee's payroll and Form W2 for tax reporting purposes.

Please note that you are not an employee of the client to which you are assigned and, accordingly, are not entitled to any benefits or compensation from the client nor are you entitled to participate in any benefit plans or other bonus plans provided by the client to its employees. If a client provides you with recognition in the form of a gift, gift card, or other cash-equivalent gifts, please contact your Recruiter so that we can work with the client on an acceptable bonus program. If you are offered any cash or non-cash gift by a client and are not sure if it is acceptable, discuss it with your Recruiter.

### **Pay Procedures and Timekeeping**

Our goal is to have the easiest, fastest and most effective payroll process in our industry. You can enter your work hours through our candidate portal at your convenience. You will be notified by your recruiter if your time will be tracked outside of our portal, via a client's time entry system. Regardless of time entry system, you are required to accurately track and record all time worked.

#### A few helpful hints:

Please read the instructions located on the candidate portal; if you have any questions about the time entry process, contact the Advanced Group payroll department at <u>payroll@advancedgroup.com</u> or (888) 631-9966.

- Timesheets must be submitted for approval by 12:00 a.m. (midnight) CST each Sunday.
- Any timesheet submitted after 12:00 p.m. CST Monday will be considered delinquent and will result in an escalating performance process outlined in the Timecard Entry Policy below.
- Timesheets will be reviewed and approved no later than 10:00 a.m. CST Tuesday.
- Timesheets for the current week are available Tuesday afternoon after payroll has been processed.
- Calculate your hours worked in quarter hour increments. Round up or down to the nearest quarter hour for your starting and ending time(s), unless your timesheet allows entering the exact minute of starting and ending time(s). For example, when rounding is appropriate:

- o 8:06am should be written as 8:00am
- 3:27pm should be written as 3:30pm
- 5:07pm should be written as 5:00pm
- 6:43am should be written as 6:45am
- At the end of the week, please "Review" your hours one last time, make any corrections that need to be made, and then "SUBMIT".
- Once your hours have been approved, your approving supervisor will receive a final confirmation "Time Card Reviewed" email.
- You will be paid on a weekly basis for hours worked.
- If you discover an error in your time or payroll records, report the matter promptly to your Recruiter so that we can investigate and, if appropriate, promptly correct the matter.

You must not perform any work before your regular start time or perform any work after your regular end time unless you are engaged in work assigned and pre-approved by the client.

Advanced Group prohibits non-exempt Consultants from working without recording their time worked. No client, supervisor or manager may pressure or encourage you to work without pay or without accurately recording overtime. If you feel pressured to work without pay or without accurately recording overtime, you should immediately report your concerns to your Recruiter.

Advanced will issue a Form W-2 by January 31st of the next year for your tax records. If you move during the year, please notify us of your change of address by contacting your Recruiter. If you need to change your W-4 or update your employment records with new information, please contact your Recruiter.

#### **Timecard Entry Policy**

Consultants are required to submit timecards and applicable business expenses on a weekly basis to ensure prompt payment and to provide excellent customer service to our clients.

During onboarding, you will be provided access to and instructions on the timecard and expense process and associated tool for submission. The final deadline is each Sunday at 12:00 a.m. (midnight) CST for the hours worked the week prior – Monday through Sunday. Any timesheet submitted after 12:00 p.m. CST each Monday will be considered delinquent and will result in an escalating performance process outlined below. If you experience any technical difficulties while entering your time, please reach out to your Recruiter immediately.

\*Please note you are required to submit a timecard even if you have zero hours to report.

Failure to adhere to the policy will result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of your assignment. The escalation path below will be followed for all occurrences of late timesheets in a rolling 6-month timeframe:

- 1<sup>st</sup> Late Timesheet Email reminder from our Operations Team
- 2<sup>nd</sup> Late Timesheet Email reminder from our Operations Team
- 3<sup>rd</sup> Late Timesheet Final email reminder from our Operations Team or your Recruiter
- 4<sup>th</sup> Late Timesheet Performance Coaching Session with Recruiter, escalation to your client supervisor

- 5<sup>th</sup> Late Timesheet Second and final Performance Coaching Session with Recruiter, including a reminder that any subsequent late timesheets will be grounds for termination
- 6<sup>th</sup> Late Timesheet Termination from Assignment

#### Meal and Rest Breaks

Meal and rest breaks are provided in accordance with applicable state law. If you are unable to take a meal break, please report the missed or shortened meal period immediately to your Recruiter and note this appropriately on your timesheet if applicable. Break and lunch periods vary from client to client. Therefore, please take only your scheduled time for lunch and breaks. The length of these periods depends on your shift and applicable state law. Your client supervisor will coordinate your lunch and break(s) schedule with you. You are only paid for hours that are worked; you are not paid for lunch. If you have any questions or concerns about meal breaks, please contact your Recruiter immediately.

#### **Lactation Breaks**

Advanced Group will provide a reasonable amount of break time to accommodate the need for Consultants to express breast milk for a child. The break time should, if possible, be taken concurrently with other break periods already provided. Non-exempt Consultants should clock out for any time taken that does not run concurrently with normally scheduled rest periods and such time will be unpaid. If a client does not have a designated lactation room, Advanced Group will make a reasonable effort to provide you with the use of another room or other suitable location in close proximity to your work area for expressing milk in private. Restrooms are not considered a suitable location for expressing breast milk under this policy. You should notify your supervisor if you are requesting time to express breast milk under this policy.

## **Attendance Policy**

Commitment to regular, on-time attendance is a critical component of your success on the job.

- All Consultants should be at their designated work areas and ready to begin working at their designated starting time. Please return promptly from lunches and breaks.
- If you are going to be late for work, need to leave early, or need to take an extended lunch break, you must notify your Recruiter as much in advance as possible. If your Recruiter is not available when you call, please leave a detailed voicemail. If you are unable to reach your Recruiter via phone, you may also text message or email your Recruiter.
- If you are sick and are unable to be at work, barring any extraordinary circumstances, you must contact your Recruiter at least one hour before your start time. If you are not able to contact the Recruiter, leave a voicemail and follow up with an email including your name, client name, supervisor, reason for absence, time you are not available and your phone number you can be reached.
- Excused absences require the approval of your Recruiter. Please keep planned absences to a minimum and provide at least 72 hours' notice for any foreseeable time away from work (or as much notice as is practicable if unforeseeable reasons are involved). You may be required to

provide documentation to your Recruiter to support an absence. You are also responsible for following up with your Recruiter on the day of your absence. Please do not contact your client supervisor directly; as your employer, we manage attendance-related issues and related communications.

- The Company reserves the right to require proof if you are absent for 3 days or longer:
  - A doctor's certificate to substantiate and illness;
  - Documentation to substantiate a court appearance.
- Consistent with applicable law, the following are grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including immediate termination of employment:
  - Excessive absenteeism
  - Excessive tardiness
  - Unapproved extended lunches/breaks
  - Failure to notify the Company of any absence or tardiness
- Barring any extraordinary circumstances that preclude you from timely contacting the Company, if three days of unexcused absence occur and you have not contacted your Recruiter you will be deemed to have abandoned your job and your employment will be terminated.

### Benefits

We are pleased to offer eligible Consultants our industry-leading benefits for your commitment to Advanced and our clients. Please note that the benefits, including the medical and 401k plan benefits referenced below are governed by formal plan documents, and administered to eligible Consultants in accordance with those documents. These benefits may be modified or terminated with or without notice in the Company's sole discretion, in accordance with applicable law. If you have any questions about benefits, please send an email to <u>benefits@advancedgroup.com</u>.

- Medical benefits options are available for single and family coverage. There are in-network and out-of-network options.
- Enrollment materials will be sent directly to your email after you start working with the Company. If you have questions about this material or if you have not received the information you are seeking, please contact <u>benefits@advancedgroup.com</u>.
- Consultant must enroll in or decline the benefit plans within 30 days of their first assignment/contract or during annual open enrollment. The only time you can enroll in the plan is during the open enrollment period or within 30 days of the start of your first assignment.
- Consultant may elect a medical plan but will not be eligible to participate in the plan unless they meet the full-time requirement (regularly scheduled to work 30 hours weekly and 120 hours per month).

Please consult the plan documents for further details, eligibility requirements, premium co-payments or other conditions of these benefit programs as they may be subject to change from time to time to comply with the law and/or newly adopted benefit programs.

If you have any questions concerning your benefits, please contact <u>benefits@advancedgroup.com</u>.

**Please Note:** If you do not timely enroll in the Company's group health plan or other benefits following your hire or during open enrollment, subject to applicable plan terms as set forth in the formal plan documents, you may not be eligible to enroll until the next open enrollment.

#### 401k

The Company offers participation in a 401k plan. Eligibility requirements, enrollment information, and timeframes for participation can be found in your onboarding documents. As other benefits, the 401k plan is governed by formal plan documents, and is subject to modification or discontinuation at the Company's sole discretion, in accordance with applicable law.

Information on the plan, available funds, company match and enrollment instructions will be supplied during open enrollment by the plan provider.

If you have any questions about the 401k plan, please contact <u>benefits@advancedgroup.com</u>.

## **Ending an Assignment & Unemployment**

As you are approaching the end of an assignment, here are a few things you should prepare for:

- Update your resume and send an updated copy to your Recruiter.
- The Company will send you a post-assignment survey. Your feedback is important to us so please take a moment to complete.
- If you would like to be considered for future work assignments, notify your Recruiter of your next date of availability. If available and in good standing, your Recruiter will continue to look for qualified assignments.
- If you file for unemployment benefits, you must call and notify your Recruiter of your availability
  <u>every week</u> for reassignment or you may be denied your benefits. If you fail to comply with this
  provision, the Company may assume you are not interested in being considered for client
  assignments.
- Please also note that the State may require additional documents/action from you to qualify for unemployment benefits each week <u>besides</u> checking in with your Recruiter each week and it is your responsibility to make yourself aware of these requirements.
- We will attempt to place you in positions that meet your compensation requests as discussed in the initial interview; however, depending on ongoing client/position needs, some assignments may have higher or lower rates of pay.
- If you find another assignment or position, please notify your Recruiter that you are no longer available for work.

## Separation of Employment/Return of Company Property

Separation of employment can occur for several different reasons:

• **Resignation/Termination:** Employment at the Company is at-will. This means that both the Consultant and the Company are free to terminate the employment relationship at their discretion at any time, for any reason, with or without notice. If you resign your employment with the Company, the Company requests a minimum of 10 working days' notice prior to resignation (for any reason). A written resignation should be submitted to your Recruiter, including the intended termination date and the reason for leaving.

• Job abandonment: Barring exceptional circumstances, Consultants who fail to report to work or contact their Recruiter for three (3) consecutive workdays shall be considered to have abandoned the job without notice, effective at the end of their normal shift on the third day. Consultants who are separated due to job abandonment are ineligible for rehire.

The separating Consultant (regardless of the reason(s) for the end of employment) must return all Company or Company's client property, including (but not limited to) Company-issued cell phones, keys, computers, and identification cards, no later than the Consultant's last day of work or immediately upon request, whichever occurs sooner. Consultant will be held personally responsible for Company property Consultant fails to return.

Health insurance terminates the last day of the month of employment, unless a Consultant requests immediate termination of benefits. Information for Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation (COBRA) continued health coverage will be provided. Employees will be required to pay their share of the dependent health and dental premiums through the end of the month.

## **Leave Policies**

#### Paid Sick Leave

The Company follows the sick time laws governed by each city/state.

- Sick time accrual begins on the first day working in the state that the law is effective.
- Accrued but unused sick time is not paid out to the Consultant at the end of the assignment.
- The accrual amount, accrual cap, accrual roll over, rehire rules, what sick time can be used for and when sick time is available are governed by applicable state and local laws. If you have any questions about paid sick leave, please contact your Recruiter.
- Subject to the requirements of applicable law, paid sick time generally will run concurrently with and must be substituted toward any other Paid Time Off (PTO) provided to Consultant, and may not be used to extend the total annual allotment of PTO (which may be used for any reasons, including personal, vacation and sick leave-related reasons).

State	Working Locations	Available for Use	Accrual	Annual Accrual Use Cap	Roll Over Cap	Accrual reinstated if rehired in:
AZ	State of AZ	Day 91	1 hours for every 30 hours worked	40	40	9 months
СА	San Francisco, Emeryville, Oakland, Berkeley	Day 91	1 hour for every 30 hours worked	no cap	72	12 months
CA	Los Angeles	Day 91	1 hour for every 30 hours worked	48	72	12 months

CA	San Diego	Day 91	1 hour for every 30 hours worked	40	80	12 months
CA	Santa Monica	Day 91	1 hour for every 30 hours worked	40	40	12 months
СА	California State	Day 91	1 hour for every 30 hours worked	24hrs or 3 days	48	12 months
со	<u>Colorado</u>	Day 1	1 hour for every 30 hours worked	48	48	6 months
DC	Washington, DC	Day 91	1 hour for every 37 hours worked	56	no cap	12 months
IL	Cook County	Day 181	1 hour for every 40 hours worked	40	20	12 months
MA	Massachusetts	Day 91	1 hour for every 30 hours worked	40	40	12 months
MD	Montgomery County	Day 91	1 hour for every 30 hours worked	56	80	12 months
ME	<u>Maine State</u>	Day 121	1 hour for every 40 hours worked	40	40	12 months
MN	Minneapolis, MN	Day 91	1 hours for every 30 hours worked	48	80	90 days
MN	Duluth, MN	Day 91	1 hour for every 50 hours worked	40	40	90 days
NJ	New Jersey State	Day 121	1 hour for every 30 hours worked	40	40	6 months
NM	Bernalillo County, NM	Day 91	1 hour for every 32 hours worked	44	44	12 months
NM	New Mexico State	Day 1	1 hour for every 30 hours worked	64	64	12 months
NY	New York State	Day 1	1 hour for every 30 hours worked	56	no cap	12 months

NY	<u>New York City,</u> <u>Brooklyn, Bronx,</u> <u>Staten Island</u>	Day 1	1 hour for every 30 hours worked	56	no cap	12 months
NY	Westchester	Day 1	1 hour for every 30 hours worked	40	no cap	12 months
OR	State of OR	Day 91	1 hours for every 30 hours worked	40	40	6 months
PA	<u>Philadelphia</u>	Day 91	1 hour for every 40 hours worked	40	no cap	Forfeited a termination
PA	Pittsburgh, PA	Day 91	1 hour for every 35 hours worked	40	no cap	6 months
RI	Rhode Island	Day 91	1 hour for every 35 hours worked	40	no cap	5 months
WA	<u>Tacoma, WA</u>	Day 181	1 hour for every 40 hours worked	40	24	12 months
WA	Washington State	Day 91	1 hour for every 40 hours worked	no cap	40	12 months
WA	<u>Seattle</u>	Day 91	1 hour for every 30 hours worked	72	72	12 months

Information in the above chart is subject to changes. If you have any questions, please contact your Recruiter.

Subject to the requirements of applicable law, Consultants eligible for paid sick leave should review the following:

- Consultant may begin taking accrued paid sick leave consistent with applicable law provisions generally after approximately completing 3 to 6 months of employment.
- Paid sick time taken cannot exceed the balance available. Available paid sick leave balance can be viewed on your paystub.
- Paid sick time must be taken in a minimum of 2 hours per day and may not exceed the regular scheduled hours in a workday. Sick time must be taken while Consultant is on an assignment and scheduled to work.
- In order to ensure that you are paid for your sick leave, you are required to enter sick leave in erecruit or provide the sick time request to your Operations partner if you use a timesheet portal other than erecruit, when completing your time sheet for the week that sick leave is taken, but in no event more than one week after you have returned to work.
- When entering your paid sick leave time in erecruit, select the rate "Sick Leave" and enter time. If you leave early to take available paid sick time off, time entered should accurately

reflect regular time worked, and the increment taken for paid sick leave, consistent with the requirements of this policy.

- Paid sick leave, denoted as "Sick Leave" in erecruit, will only be available on Consultant's timesheet if and when requirements for paid sick leave are met. If the "Sick Leave" option is missing and you believe you qualify for paid sick leave, please contact your Recruiter.
- If your use of paid sick leave is foreseeable, you must provide reasonable advance notice to your Recruiter. If the need is not reasonably foreseeable, Consultant must notify their recruiter as soon as practicable.
- If Consultant is absent for more than three consecutive work days for sick leave purposes, we may require medical documentation.
- Consultants who use paid sick leave for purposes other than for sick leave purposes, e.g., to take care of one's own or a family member's illness or injury, or to address a domestic violence issue, consistent with the paid sick time off requirements of applicable law, may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including immediate termination.

#### **Bereavement Leave**

We understand how painful and difficult it can be to lose a loved one. You are eligible for up to three consecutive days of excused, unpaid leave due to the loss of an immediate family member. For purposes of this policy, immediate family members are defined as a Consultant's spouse or civil union partner, children, parents (or spouse's parents), siblings, stepparents, grandparents, grandchildren, domestic partners, and legal dependents. Consultants may arrange for unpaid time off to attend the services of individuals other than immediate family members with their Recruiter's approval. If applicable law provides for greater bereavement benefits for any losses, the Company will comply and provide bereavement leave consistent with the requirements of applicable law.

#### **Medical/Personal Leave of Absence**

We realize that from time to time, Consultants may need time off for medical or compelling personal reasons, which may not qualify under the Family and Medical Leave Act ("FMLA") policy. If you require a medical or another personal leave of absence, please contact your Recruiter. Leave requests will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis, and may be granted or denied, depending on the relevant circumstances, consistent with applicable law. While we will attempt to reinstate Consultants returning from a medical or personal leave under this policy, please understand that we cannot guarantee that an assignment will be available when you request to return to work. Consultants will be required to substitute any available paid time off toward leave granted under this policy; the remainder of the leave will be unpaid. Consult your Recruiter or see Appendix A for a summary of your rights and obligations under our Family and Medical Leave Act ("FMLA") and Pregnancy Disability Leave ("PDL") policies.

#### **Leave for Victims of Felony Crimes**

To the extent required by law, Consultants who are victims of certain, specified felony crimes, or who are immediate family members of a victim, a registered domestic partner of a victim, or the child of a registered domestic partner of a victim, may receive unpaid time off from work to attend judicial proceedings related to that crime. To take this leave, you must provide the Company in advance with a copy of the notice of the proceeding. If advance notice is not possible, you must provide the Company with appropriate documentation evidencing your attendance at the judicial proceeding upon returning back to work.

#### Leave for Victims of Domestic Violence & Sexual Assault

To the extent required by law, Consultants who are victims of domestic violence or of sexual assault may receive unpaid leave to: 1) obtain services from a domestic violence shelter or rape crisis center; 2) seek medical attention for injuries caused by domestic violence or sexual assault; 3) obtain psychological counseling for the domestic violence or sexual assault; or 4) take action, such as relocation, to protect against future domestic violence or sexual assault. To take this leave, you must provide the Company with advance notice of the leave. If advance notice is not possible, you must provide the Company with the following certification upon returning back to work: 1) a police report showing that you were a victim of domestic violence or sexual assault; or 2) a court order protecting you from the perpetrator or other evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that you appeared in court; or 3) documentation from a medical professional, domestic violence or sexual assault victim advocate, health care provider, or counselor showing that your absence was due to treatment for injuries from domestic violence or sexual assault. You may choose to use any accrued sick time, if available, for such an absence.

#### **Civic Duties**

We encourage each of our Consultants to accept their civic responsibilities.

- Jury Duty: If you receive a notice for jury duty, please notify your Recruiter immediately. If you are released from jury service before the end of your regular scheduled shift or are not asked to serve on a jury panel, you are expected to call your Recruiter as soon as possible and report to work if requested. You must bring a statement indicating the length of jury time upon your return. Time off for jury duty is unpaid for non-exempt Consultants and for exempt Consultants who perform no work during a full week of jury service. Exempt Consultants will receive their full salary for the week while on jury service if they perform any work during the week. Please refer to the state law in which you live for time off allowance and work with your Recruiter so coverage arrangements can be made. Should you have any questions, please contact your Recruiter.
- Voting: We want every Consultant to have the opportunity to vote in every election. The Company complies with the voting laws for each state. Generally, there will be sufficient time to vote either before or after your scheduled shift. Please refer to the state law in which you live for time off allowance and work with your Recruiter so coverage arrangements can be made. Should you have any questions, please contact your Recruiter.
- **Military Leave:** Consultants who are inducted into the U.S. Armed Forces or who are reserve members of the U.S. Armed Forces or state militia groups will be granted unpaid leaves of absence for military service, training, or other obligations in compliance with state and federal laws. Consultants are requested to notify their Recruiter as soon as they are aware of the military obligation. The Company does not discriminate in employment or take any adverse employment action against past or present members of the uniformed service, individuals who have applied for membership in the uniformed service or individuals who are obligated to serve in the uniformed service. Questions regarding the military leave, applicable state and federal laws, and continuation of benefits should be directed to your Recruiter. See Appendix A for our FMLA policy for additional rights and benefits for eligible service members and their caregivers or covered family members who are Consultants of Advanced Group.

## **Commitment to Diversity**

At Advanced Group, our commitment to diversity and inclusion in every part of our organization is crucial to fulfilling our mission and demonstrating our REAL values. A diverse staff allows us to effectively draw on different perspectives and enhance our efficiency and effectiveness. We seek talented, creative individuals from a variety of backgrounds and cultures to work with us. It is our priority that our workplace be inclusive, welcoming of diverse ideas and appreciative of valuable experience.

## **Equal Employment Opportunity**

It is Advanced Group's practice not to discriminate against any Consultant because of sex, race, color, age, national origin, religion, gender, gender identity or expression, sexual orientation or sexual preference, pregnancy or maternity, genetic information, marital status, physical or mental disability, medical condition, military or veteran status, or any other basis protected by applicable federal, state, or local law.

This practice applies to all terms and conditions of employment. If you have a disability or handicap and would like us to accommodate you in any reasonable way, please inform your Recruiter so that we can meet to discuss the appropriate alternatives available.

If you believe you have been subjected to discrimination or harassment of any kind based on any protected status(es), or if you are aware of a violation or have any questions about Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO), you must bring the matter to the attention of your Recruiter. Or, if you do not feel the matter can be comfortably discussed with your Recruiter, you must contact your Human Resource Business Partner and/or any other member of Advanced Group management with whom you feel comfortable discussing the matter.

Be assured that all complaints or inquiries raised will be promptly investigated and remedied as appropriate. Also be assured that no retaliation will be taken or tolerated against any Consultant based on their participation in a complaint investigation or for raising a complaint or inquiry. For more information, refer to the <u>EEO poster</u> and <u>Supplement</u>.

#### **Additional Resources**

Using our complaint process as described below does not prohibit you from obtaining additional information from or filing a complaint with an appropriate government agency. The phone number for the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) is (800) 669-4000. This toll-free number will put you in contact with your local EEOC office.

If you are working in Illinois, Rhode Island, Massachusetts, California or New York, the contact information for these states' administrative agencies is as follows:

In Illinois:	Human Rights Commission 100 West Randolph Street, Suite 5-100 Chicago, IL 60601 (312) 814-6269
In Rhode Island:	Commission on Human Rights And Opportunities 10 Abbott Park Place Providence, RI 02903 (401) 222-2664

In Massachusetts:	Commission Against Discrimination (MCAD) Boston Office One Ashburton Place, Room 60 Boston, MA 02108 (617) 994-6000
In California:	Fair Employment Housing Commission 2014 T Street, Suite 210 Sacramento, CA 95814 (800) 884-1684
In New York:	Division of Human Rights One Fordham Plaza, Fourth Floor Bronx, NY 10458 1-888-392-3644

#### Pay Transparency Non-Discrimination Provision (Federal Contractors Only)

The Company will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against employees or applicants because they have inquired about, discussed, or disclosed their own pay or the pay of another employee or applicant. However, employees who have access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of their essential job functions cannot disclose the pay of other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to compensation information, unless the disclosure is (a) in response to a formal complaint or charge, (b) in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or (c) consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information. 41 CFR 60-1.35(c)

#### **Disabilities, Pregnancy and Reasonable Accommodation**

The Company will not discriminate against qualified individuals with disabilities in regard to application procedures, hiring, advancement, discharge, compensation, training or other terms, conditions, and privileges of employment.

To ensure equal employment opportunities to qualified individuals with a disability, the Company will make reasonable accommodations for the known disability of an otherwise qualified individual, unless undue hardship on the operation of the business would result.

Consultants who may require a reasonable accommodation should contact their Recruiter. The Company will work with any individual requesting accommodation on a case-by-case basis, to determine if and how accommodation(s) reasonably may be provided.

The Company will not discriminate against any Consultant due to pregnancy, childbirth, or pregnancyrelated condition<sup>1</sup>. The Company is committed to providing reasonable accommodations to applicants and Consultants who need such accommodations for any medical or common conditions related to pregnancy and/or childbirth. Such accommodations will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis and may

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>In accordance with the Illinois Human Rights Act, Advanced Group will not discriminate against any employee due to pregnancy, childbirth, or pregnancy-related conditions.

include, if/as appropriate, more frequent or longer breaks, physical accommodations such as some seating arrangements, modifications to job schedules and/or reasonable time off work as may be required by the pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions.

Consultants who may require a reasonable accommodation should contact their Recruiter.

## **Nondiscrimination and Anti-Harassment Policy**

Advanced Group is committed to a work environment in which all individuals are treated with respect and dignity, free of unlawful discrimination or harassment. Each individual has the right to work in a professional atmosphere that promotes equal employment opportunities and prohibits unlawful discriminatory practices, including harassment. Therefore, Advanced Group expects that all relationships among persons in the office will be professional and free of bias, prejudice and harassment.

It is our policy to prohibit all types of harassment, including but not limited to harassment based on: sex, race, color, age, national origin, religion, gender, gender identity or expression, sexual orientation or sexual preference, pregnancy or maternity, genetic information, marital status, physical or mental disability, medical condition, military or veteran status, or any other basis protected by applicable federal, state or local law. Activities of this nature are unlawful and serve no legitimate purpose; they have a disruptive effect on your ability to perform your job and they undermine the integrity of the employment relationship. Accordingly, conduct that is considered to constitute harassment under this policy, whether by an Advanced Group employee, fellow Consultant, or a customer will not be tolerated. The Company also prohibits harassment by third parties in the workplace.

For purposes of this policy, the term "harassment" is broadly defined. Harassment is verbal or physical conduct relating to an individual's sex, race, color, age, national origin, religion, gender, gender identity or expression, sexual orientation or sexual preference, pregnancy or maternity, genetic information, marital status, physical or mental disability, medical condition, military or veteran status, or any other protected status when this conduct: (a) has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment; (b) has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance; or (c) otherwise adversely affects an individual's employment opportunities. Some examples of conduct that may constitute prohibited harassment include: epithets, slurs, jokes, cartoons, derogatory comments, signs, visual displays, stereotypes, statements, etc. based upon sex, race, color, age, national origin, religion, gender, gender identity or expression, sexual orientation or sexual preference, pregnancy or maternity, genetic information, marital status, physical or mental disability, medical condition, military or veteran status, or any other basis protected by applicable federal, state, or local law.

Sexual harassment, in particular, consists of unwanted or unwelcome visual, verbal, or physical conduct of a sexual nature. Acts considered to constitute sexual harassment include, but are not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when: (a) submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual's employment; (b) an individual's submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as a basis for an employment decision affecting that individual; or (c) the purpose or the effect of such conduct is to substantially interfere with the affected individual's work performance or to create an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment. Examples of sexual harassment include:

a. Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory jokes or comments, slurs, requests for sexual favors, or unwanted sexual advances, flirtations, or propositions/invitations

- b. Visual conduct such as derogatory and/or sexually-oriented posters, photography, cartoons, drawings, gestures, or use of Advanced Group's computer systems to send and access sexually-explicit materials
- c. Physical conduct such as unwanted touching or blocking normal movement; and/or
- d. Exchanging or offering to exchange any kind of an employment benefit for a sexual request or concession (e.g., promising a promotion or a raise in exchange for a sexual favor); or, withdrawing or threatening to withdraw any kind of an employment benefit for refusing to grant a sexual request or to make a sexual concession

An individual need not have been physically touched or directly subjected to a sexual advance or innuendo to be considered to have been harassed under this Policy.

It is a violation of this policy to commit or engage in any unprofessional or inappropriate conduct based on any protected characteristic in violation of this policy, whether or not such conduct rises to the level of "unlawful" harassment.

## Human Rights Policy

The Company has a zero-tolerance policy prohibiting trafficking in persons. This includes, but is not limited to, the following trafficking-related activities:

- Engaging in any form of human trafficking where travel is arranged or facilitated for any persons with a view to exploiting them;
- Procuring commercial sex acts in the performance of any work;
- Using forced labor in the performance of any work or coercing any persons to perform work or activities under threat of penalty;
- Destroying, concealing, confiscating, or otherwise denying access by an employee to the employee's identity or immigration documents, such as passports or drivers' licenses, regardless of issuing authority;
- Using misleading or fraudulent practices during the recruitment of candidates/employees or offering of employment;
- Using recruiters that do not comply with local labor laws of the country in which the recruiting takes place;
- Charging applicants/candidates/employees recruitment fees;
- Failing to provide return transportation or pay for the cost of return transportation upon the end of employment, for an employee who is not a national of the country in which the work is taking place and who was brought into that country for the purpose of working on a U.S. Government contract or subcontract (for portions of contracts performed outside the United States), unless the employee is legally permitted to remain in the country of employment and chooses to do so, or if an appropriate agency has exempted this requirement;
- Failing to provide return transportation or pay for the cost of return transportation upon the end of employment, for an employee who is not a United States national and who was brought into the United States for the purpose of working on a U.S. Government contract or subcontract, if the payment of such costs is required under existing temporary worker programs or pursuant to a written agreement with the employee (for portions of contracts performed inside the United States), unless the employee is legally permitted to remain in the country of employment and chooses to do so, or if an appropriate agency has exempted this requirement;
- Providing or arranging housing that fails to meet the host country housing and safety standards; and

• If required by law or contracts, failing to provide an employment contract, recruitment agreement, or other required work document in writing and in a language the employee understands.

The Company does not and will not permit its employees, subcontractors, vendors, suppliers, or other entities doing business with the Company to engage in any form of human trafficking and the above activities.

## **Anti-Bribery Policy**

The Company encourages you to patronize any client engaged in legitimate professional or business activities. However, you shall not offer any bribe or similar consideration to any client or company in order to obtain business for the Company. Any payments made or favorable terms conceded, or other advantages given in the conduct of the Company's business shall be in accordance with the Company's policies.

*Personal Benefits:* You shall not solicit, accept or retain personal benefits from any client of the Company, or any individual or organization doing or seeking to do business with the Company.

## **Complaint Procedure**

<u>Reporting Procedures:</u> We take allegations of harassment very seriously. If you believe that you are the victim of harassment by anyone (including Recruiters, co-workers, customers or visitors), or if you have witnessed any conduct that may constitute a violation of this policy, you <u>must immediately</u> report it to your Recruiter. If your Recruiter is somehow involved in the harassment, or if you are uncomfortable speaking directly with your Recruiter, you <u>must immediately</u> report this matter to your HR Business Partner, any other member of Advanced Group management, the Head of HR, or the CEO. We recognize there may be circumstances when you are not comfortable reporting the issue in this manner, and in these cases, you may instead submit a report via the EthicsPoint Hotline. Reports submitted via EthicsPoint may be submitted anonymously. For more information on EthicsPoint, review the materials provided to you during onboarding or contact your Recruiter.

Recruiters <u>must immediately</u> report any incidents that they hear about or observe that may constitute a violation of this policy to their HR Business Partner, the head of HR, the CEO or another member of Company leadership with whom the individual is comfortable discussing the matter.

Similarly, if you observe acts of discrimination toward or harassment of another Advanced Group Consultant, you are **required** to immediately report this to one of the individuals listed above.

No Recruiter or supervisor has the authority to condition any tangible job benefit on a Consultant's putting up with or agreeing to any conduct that may violate this policy. If a Consultant believes that they have been deprived of any job benefit or that they have been threatened, they must immediately report it to one of the individuals listed above.

<u>Investigation Procedures:</u> All reports and allegations of harassment will be investigated thoroughly. All employees are expected to cooperate fully in such investigations. This includes participating in interviews, obtaining and providing certain documents and/or other information, and maintaining the confidentiality of information as appropriate and requested. Information provided in the context of a harassment investigation or as part of a harassment complaint will be kept confidential, to the extent possible and

practicable under the circumstances. Please note, however, that disclosure may be necessary to conduct a meaningful investigation and to fashion an appropriate remedy.

<u>Retaliation Prohibited:</u> Consultants may raise concerns and make reports of harassment and/or participate in the Company's investigation of alleged harassment without any fear of reprisal or retaliation. Retaliation against any person who has complained about harassment, filed a charge of harassment, or who otherwise participated in an investigation of harassment will not be tolerated. Furthermore, no Recruiter, supervisor or officer has the authority to require you to tolerate or agree to any conduct that violates this policy in order to receive any job benefit, including compensation, duties, assignments, promotions, etc. Such activities are unlawful and will result in severe discipline, up to and including discharge. Any concerns of retaliation must be reported immediately to HR or member of management.

<u>Disciplinary Action</u>: Any Consultant found to have violated this policy, including the anti-retaliation provision above, will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including immediate termination of employment. Questions about this policy should be directed to Human Resources.

## Workplace Safety

#### Safety on the Job

Your safety and well-being are important to us, so we have developed the following safety rules:

- If you are uncomfortable or concerned about performing any aspect of your job, please notify your Recruiter immediately.
- Immediately report any injuries or accidents, no matter how slight it seems, to the client-site assignment coordinator, as well as to your Recruiter.
- Report any observed unsafe act or condition to your client-site assignment coordinator and to your Recruiter immediately.
- Know where fire extinguishers and first aid kits are located.
- If you see someone get hurt and you are not trained in and designated as a "First Aid Provider", do not move or treat an injured person. Please find someone who is properly trained to handle the situation.
- If your position calls for any type of lifting, lift from your knees to limit undue pressure on your back.
- If you are taking any prescription that may pose a safety threat to you or others in the area(s) where you are assigned to work, do not proceed to assignment. Instead, you must contact your Recruiter immediately. We will discuss alternatives to reasonably accommodate your condition if/as may be appropriate.
- If you are required to drive in the course of your assignment (beyond commuting to and from the assignment site), please contact your Recruiter immediately to confirm permission and appropriate arrangements.
- **DO NOT** attempt to move any office equipment.
- **DO** obey all signs and labels. They alert you to any on-the job hazards.
- If required to have a badge for your position, DO wear your badge at all times.
- **DO** report suspicious persons or activity immediately to the client-site assignment coordinator and to your Recruiter.
- **DO** report incidents of actual or perceived assault and battery immediately to the client-site assignment coordinator and to your Recruiter.

#### **Drug- and Alcohol-Free Workplace**

It is the policy of the Company to maintain a drug- and alcohol-free work environment that is safe and productive for Consultants and others having business with the Company.

The unlawful use, possession, purchase, sale, distribution, or being under the influence of any illegal drug and/or the misuse of legal drugs while on Advanced Group or client premises or while performing services for the Company is strictly prohibited. The Company also prohibits reporting to work or performing services while impaired by alcohol or drugs (including cannabis) or consuming alcohol or drugs (including cannabis) while on duty or during work hours.

To ensure compliance with this policy, substance abuse screenings may be conducted in the following situations:

- **Pre-employment:** May be required for placement at some clients. Testing will be on "as needed" and client-specific basis and will adhere to any local laws.
- For Cause: Upon reasonable suspicion that the Consultant is under the influence of alcohol or drugs that could affect or has adversely affected the Consultant's safe job performance.
- **Post-Accident:** Any Consultant involved in an accident while on duty for Advanced Group or one of our clients that results in property damage or injury requiring medical treatment will be required to submit to drug screening (and/or alcohol screen in appropriate cases).

Compliance with this policy is a condition of employment. Consultants who test positive or who refuse to submit to substance abuse screening will be subject to termination. Refusal includes refusing to report immediately to the testing location upon request, refusal to sign a medical test authorization form as required by the Company, refusal to provide specimens unless medically incapable of doing so, and/or attempts to falsify or interfere with the testing process, including failure to comply with instructions or attempting to substitute, dilute, or otherwise change specimens to be tested. Notwithstanding any provision herein, this policy will be enforced at all times in accordance with applicable state and local law.

Any Consultant violating this policy is subject to discipline, up to and including termination, for the first offense, including, in the absence of a test, based on other available evidence, including but not limited to observed conduct and symptoms.

#### **Workplace Violence Prevention**

Advanced Group is committed to providing a safe, violence-free workplace for our Consultants. Due to this commitment, we strictly prohibit Consultants from engaging in any physical confrontation with a violent or potentially violent individual or from behaving in a threatening or violent manner. Threats, threatening language, or any other acts of aggression or violence made toward or by any Consultant will not be tolerated and will result in immediate termination of employment of the perpetrator. A threat may include any verbal or physical harassment or abuse, attempts to intimidate others, menacing gestures, stalking, or any other hostile, aggressive, and/or destructive actions taken for the purposes of intimidation. This policy covers any violent or potentially violent behavior that occurs in the workplace or at company-sponsored functions.

All Advanced Group Consultants bear the responsibility of keeping our work environment free from violence or potential violence. Any Consultant who witness or is the recipient of violent behavior must immediately inform their Recruiter. All threats will be promptly investigated. No Consultant will be subject

to retaliation, intimidation, or discipline as a result of reporting a threat or violent conduct in good faith under this policy.

Any individual engaging in any violent conduct against the Advanced Group, its Consultant, or its property may be prosecuted to the full extent of the law. All acts will be investigated, and the appropriate action will be taken. Any violent act or threatening behavior may result in disciplinary action up to and including immediate termination of employment.

Advanced Group prohibits the possession of weapons on its property at all times, including our parking lots or in any Advanced Group vehicles. Additionally, while on duty, Consultants may not carry a weapon of any type. Weapons include, but are not limited to, handguns, rifles, automatic weapons, and knives that can be used as weapons (excluding pocketknives, utility knives, and other instruments that are used to open packages, cut string, and for other miscellaneous tasks), martial arts paraphernalia, stun guns, and tear gas. Any Consultant violating this policy is subject to discipline up to and including dismissal for the first offense.

The Advanced Group reserves the right to inspect all belongings of Consultants on its premises, including briefcases, purses and handbags, gym bags, and personal vehicles on Advanced Group property at any time, in the Company's sole discretion.

#### **Commitment to Safety**

Protecting the safety of our Consultants and visitors is the most important aspect of running our business. All Consultants have the opportunity and responsibility to contribute to a safe work environment by using commonsense rules and safe practices and by notifying their Recruiter immediately when any health or safety issues are present. All Consultants are encouraged to partner with Company management to ensure maximum safety for all.

Although most safety regulations are consistent throughout each department and program, it is the responsibility of Consultants to identify and familiarize themselves with the emergency plan for their working areas.

In the event of an emergency in an Advanced Group office or on any assignment, call 911 immediately and notify the appropriate emergency personnel on-site.

Working safely is a responsibility shared by all. You must perform your duties in the safest manner possible and adhere to all established safety rules, procedures, and work practices. If you have any questions or concerns about workplace safety on your assignment, please let your Recruiter know immediately.

#### Workplace Accidents:

- 1. If you sustain an injury on the job, depending on the severity of your injury or illness, we will refer you to see a physician or, in an emergency, to a hospital or treatment facility. An Advanced Representative will make arrangements for transportation to a hospital if needed.
- 2. Work-related injuries or illnesses must be reported immediately to your Recruiter. No matter how minor an on-the-job injury may appear, it must be reported immediately.

3. We may require drug and/or alcohol testing upon reasonable suspicion of alcohol or drugs contributing to any work accidents/injuries (however slight).

#### Return to Work after Workplace Injury

Advanced Human Resources will seek confirmation from your doctor that you are able to safely report back to work. The release must confirm that you are medically able to perform the essential functions of your job assignment (either with or without a reasonable accommodation if you are disabled or pregnant).

## **Use of Social Media**

For purposes of this policy, "social media" activities will include all means of communicating or posting information or content of any sort on the Internet, including to your own or someone else's personal website or blog, newsletter, social networking or affinity website, web message board or a chat room, whether or not associated or affiliated with the Company, as well as any other form of electronic communication.

At the Advanced Group, we understand that social media can be a fun and rewarding way to share your life and opinions with family, friends, and co-workers around the world. However, use of social media also presents certain risks and carries with it certain responsibilities. To assist you in making responsible decisions about your use of social media, we have established this policy for appropriate use of social media.

- Be respectful to Advanced Group, other employees, Consultants, customers, partners, vendors, and competitors. Consultants must not use social media to harass, bully, threaten or discriminate. Make sure you are honest and accurate when engaged in social media activities. Avoid using statements, photographs, video or audio that reasonably could be viewed as malicious, obscene, threatening or intimidating, that disparage co-workers, customers, or other individuals affiliated with the Company, or that might constitute harassment or bullying. Examples of such conduct might include offensive posts meant to intentionally harm someone's reputation or posts that could contribute to a hostile work environment on the basis of race, sex, disability, religion or any other status protected by law. Show proper consideration for others' privacy and for topics that may be considered objectionable or inflammatory such as politics and religion.
- Do not forget your primary job. Social media activities should not interfere with your commitments to your work or to our customers.
- Your online presence reflects the Company and Advanced Group. Be aware that your actions captured via images, posts, or comments can reflect that of Advanced Group.
- Do not reference or cite Advanced Group clients, partners or customers without their express consent. In all cases, do not publish any information regarding a client during the engagement. Consultants must not disclose any Confidential Information via social media activities. Do not post financial, confidential, sensitive, or proprietary information about the Company or Advanced Group, clients, employees, applicants, or vendors. For further information, see the Confidentiality policy.
- Avoid responding to inflammatory and/or inaccurate comments posted on public forums concerning the organization, or its business practices. Responding to such comments may lead to a heated exchange that can never be won. Particularly offensive and/or threatening comments should be referred to the HR Department or to Corporate Legal Counsel.
- Respect copyright laws, and reference or cite sources appropriately. Plagiarism applies online as well.

Violations of this policy may result in discipline, up to and including termination of employment.

Nothing in this policy is intended to interfere with Consultant's rights under any applicable federal or state laws, including protected concerted activities under the National Labor Relations Act such as Consultant's right to communicate about wages, hours and terms and conditions of employment. To the extent anything in this policy conflicts with any law, the terms of that law will control.

## **Employment Verification**

The Company has contracted with an employment verification service, Experian Verify, to provide employment and income information. Employee data will be provided directly to the lending institution, rental agency, government agency, etc. When you need to provide your employment history for the Company when applying for a mortgage or loan, leasing an apartment, establishing credit, or any other instance where proof of employment is required, provide the requestor with the following information and the requestor will be able to easily and quickly access your employment history, which includes: job title, total time with company, and start date.

#### Applying for a loan or new job? Have your verifier complete these steps:

- Visit <u>www.experianverify.com</u> to log in or register as a Verifier
- If registering for the first time, select the "Commercial Verifier" option then continue
- The following information will be required:
  - o Employee SSN
  - o Employee's Full Name
  - o Name of Employer (Advanced Group)
  - o Signed Authorization (if requesting income)
- Experian Verify Customer Support can be reached at <u>verify.support@experian.com</u> or (404) 382-5400

## Do you have a Government or Social Service request? Follow these steps to obtain employment verification:

- Submit all requests by emailing <u>verify@experian.com</u> or faxing (404) 829-1336
- Please include the following information:
  - 0 Your first and last name
  - 0 Last four digits of your SSN
  - 0 A return fax # or mailing address for the requestor

## **Appendix A**

#### Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

#### **Eligibility Requirements**

Employees are eligible for FMLA if:

- At least fifty (50) or more employees are employed within a 75-mile radius of the employee's work site;
- The employee has been employed for at least one year; and
- The employee has worked at least 1,250 hours within the previous twelve (12) months.<sup>2</sup>

#### **Basic Leave Entitlement**

The FMLA requires covered employers to provide up to twelve (12) weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave in a 12-month period to eligible employees for certain family and medical reasons. The 12-month period is determined on a "rolling" 12-month period dating back from the time the employee uses any FMLA leave. Leave may be taken for any one, or for a combination, of the following reasons:

- To care for the employee's child after birth, or placement for adoption or foster care;
- To care for the employee's spouse, son or daughter, or parent (but not in-law) who has a serious health condition; and/or
- For the employee's own serious health condition (including any period of incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care or childbirth) that makes the employee unable to perform one or more of the essential functions of the employee's job.

Leave to care for the employee's child after birth, or placement for adoption or foster care must be taken within one (1) year of the child's birth or placement.

A serious health condition is an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves either an overnight stay in a medical care facility, or continuing treatment by a health care provider for a condition that either prevents the employee from performing the functions of the employee's job, or prevents the qualified family member from participating in school or other daily activities. Subject to certain conditions, the continuing treatment requirement may be met by a period of incapacity of more than three (3) consecutive calendar days combined with at least two visits to a health care provider or one visit and a regimen of continuing treatment, or incapacity due to pregnancy, or incapacity due to a chronic condition. Other conditions may meet the definition of continuing treatment.

#### **Military Family Leave**

Eligible employees with a spouse, son, daughter, or parent (but not in-law) on covered active duty or called to covered active duty status (or has been notified of an impending call or order to covered active duty) in the Reserve component of the Armed Forces for deployment to a foreign country in support of a contingency operation or Regular Armed Forces for deployment to a foreign country may use their 12-week leave entitlement to address certain qualifying exigencies. Qualifying exigencies may include attending certain military events, arranging for alternative childcare, addressing certain financial and legal arrangements, attending certain counseling sessions, caring for the parents of the military member on covered active duty and attending post-deployment reintegration briefings.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Special hours of service requirements apply to airline flight crew employees.

FMLA also includes a special leave entitlement which permits eligible employees (spouse, son, daughter, parent (but not in-law) or next of kin of a covered service member) to take up to twenty-six (26) weeks of leave to care for a covered service member with a serious injury or illness during a single 12-month period (one time basis only). A covered service member is a current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, is otherwise in outpatient status, or is on the temporary retired list, for a serious injury or illness. These individuals are referred to in this policy as "current members of the Armed Forces." Covered servicemembers also includes a veteran who is discharged or released from military services under condition other than dishonorable at any time during the five year period preceding the date the eligible employee takes FMLA leave to care for the covered veteran, and who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation or therapy for a serious injury or illness. These individuals are referred to in this policy as "covered veteran, and who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation or therapy for a serious injury or illness. These individuals are referred to in this policy as "covered veteran, and who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation or therapy for a serious injury or illness.

The FMLA definitions of a "serious injury or illness" for current Armed Forces members and covered veterans are distinct from the FMLA definition of "serious health condition" applicable to FMLA leave to care for a covered family member.

#### Job Benefits and Protection

If applicable, during FMLA leave, the Company must maintain health coverage under any "group health plan" on the same terms as if the employee had continued to work. If paid time off is substituted for unpaid leave, the Company will deduct the employee's portion of any applicable health plan premium as a regular payroll deduction. If the employee's leave is unpaid, the employee must make arrangements with Human Resources prior to taking leave to pay their portion of any applicable health insurance premiums each month.

The Company's obligation to maintain health care coverage ceases if an employee's premium payment is more than 30 days late. If an employee's payment is more than 15 days late, the Company will send a letter notifying the employee that coverage will be dropped on a specified date unless the co-payment is received before that date. If employees do not return to work at the end of the leave period (unless employees cannot return to work because of a serious health condition or other circumstances beyond their control), they will be required to reimburse the Company for the cost of the premiums the Company paid for maintaining coverage during their unpaid FMLA leave. For purposes of this paragraph, an employee will be considered to have returned to work if the employee returns to work for at least 30 calendar days, or the employee retires at the end of the FMLA leave period or within 30 days thereafter.

Upon return from FMLA leave, most employees must be restored to their original or equivalent positions with equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms.

The use of FMLA leave cannot result in the loss of any employment benefits that accrued prior to the start of an employee's leave.

#### Use of Leave

An employee does not need to use this leave entitlement in one block. Leave can be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule when medically necessary. Employees must make reasonable efforts to schedule leave for planned medical treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the Company's operations. Leave due to qualifying exigencies may also be taken on an intermittent basis.

#### Substitution of Paid Leave for Unpaid Leave

Employees may use accrued vacation, PTO, personal, and sick time (to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law) while on unpaid FMLA leave. The substitution of paid time for unpaid FMLA leave time does not extend the length of FMLA leaves and the paid time will run concurrently with an employee's FMLA entitlement.

Upon written request, the Company will allow employees to use accrued vacation, PTO, personal, and sick time to supplement any applicable paid disability, Workers' Compensation or other monetary benefits. Receipt of disability benefits, Workers' Compensation benefits or other monetary benefits does not extend the maximum amount of leave time to which an employee is eligible under the FMLA.

#### **Employee Responsibilities**

Employees must provide thirty (30) days' advance notice of the need to take FMLA leave when the need is foreseeable. When thirty (30) days' notice is not possible, the employee must provide notice as soon as practicable and generally must comply with the Company's normal call-in procedures.

Employees must provide sufficient information for the Company to determine if the leave may qualify for FMLA protection and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave. Sufficient information may include that the employee is unable to perform job functions; the family member is unable to perform daily activities, the need for hospitalization or continuing treatment by a health care provider, or circumstances supporting the need for military family leave. Employees also must inform the Company if the requested leave is for a reason for which FMLA leave was previously taken or certified. Employees may also be required to provide medical certification and periodic recertification supporting the need for leave.

#### **Employer Responsibilities**

Covered employers must inform employees requesting leave whether they are eligible under the FMLA. If they are, the notice must specify any additional information required as well as the employees' rights and responsibilities. If they are not eligible, the employer must provide a reason for ineligibility.

Covered employers must inform employees if leave is designated as FMLA-protected and the amount of leave counted against the employee's leave entitlement. If the employer determines that the leave is not FMLA-protected, the employer must notify the employee.

#### Unlawful Acts by Employers

FMLA makes it unlawful for the Company to:

- Interfere with, restrain, or deny the exercise of any right provided under the FMLA;
- Discharge or discriminate against any person for opposing any practice made unlawful by the FMLA or for involvement in any proceeding under or relating to the FMLA.

Concerns regarding a possible violation with respect to either of these obligations should be reported to the Company's Human Resources Department.

#### Enforcement

Employees may file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Labor or may bring a private lawsuit against an employer.

FMLA does not affect any Federal or State law prohibiting discrimination or supersede any State or local law or collective bargaining agreement, which provides greater family or medical leave rights.

## Appendix B

#### **California Employee Provisions**

The following terms apply to employees residing in the State of California only.

#### **Meal Periods**

Non-exempt Consultants who work more than 5.0 hours up to 10.0 hours shall be provided with one unpaid off-duty meal period of at least 30 minutes. The first meal period must start by no later than 5.0 hours of work. You may voluntarily waive your meal period if you will not work more than 6.0 hours. The waiver must be in writing, and your supervisor must agree to the waiver. Please contact your Recruiter to coordinate a written waiver. You may revoke the waiver at any time by providing a written request to your Recruiter.

If you work more than 10.0 hours, you will be provided a second duty-free meal period of 30 minutes. The second meal period should begin by no later than 10.0 hours of work. You may voluntarily waive your second meal period if you will not work more than 12.0 hours and have received your first meal period. The waiver must be in writing, and the client must agree to the waiver. Written waivers must be coordinated through your Recruiter. You may revoke the waiver at any time by providing a written request to your Recruiter. If you work more than 12.0 hours, you may not waive your second meal period. You must accurately record the time you start and end your meal periods. Meal periods are unpaid and do not count as hours worked. For your safety and well-being, meal breaks should be taken in designated areas such as the breakroom and must be taken away from work areas.

Meal periods must be at least 30 consecutive minutes and are duty-free. A duty-free meal period means you are relieved of all work duties and are free to leave the work site. You may use this time as you choose free from the direction and control of Advanced Group and the client. You must be provided you with a reasonable opportunity to take uninterrupted 30-minute meal periods, and you may not be impeded or discouraged from taking them. While Advanced Group encourages you not to work during your duty-free meal periods, this is your personal time, and Advanced Group will not direct, control or monitor how it is used.

If due to work demands, you are not relieved of all duty for one or more meal periods, you must immediately report the missed meal period to your Recruiter and supervisor. The supervisor will either make arrangements for you to take a duty-free meal period or will report the missed meal period to Advanced Group. If Advanced Group or the client is responsible for non-exempt Consultant being unable to a take a meal period in accordance with this policy, the Consultant will be paid one additional hour of pay for that day.

Meal period schedules will vary from client to client based on business hours and work schedules. Your supervisor will coordinate your lunch schedule with you. Please take only your scheduled time for lunch. The following chart shows the number of meal periods available based on the hours of work:

Hours of Work	# of Meal Breaks
0-5.0	0
>5.0-10.0	1
>10.0-15.0	2

#### **Rest Periods**

Non-exempt Consultants are authorized and permitted to take one 10-minute rest break for each fourhour period of work, or major fraction of a four hour period. Rest breaks should be taken in the middle of each four-hour work period as much as practicable. Rest breaks may not be combined with meal breaks or used at the beginning or end of the shift. You may not skip rest periods in order to leave earlier.

Rest periods must be at least a net 10 consecutive minutes and are duty free. A duty-free rest period means you are relieved of all work duties and may use the time as you choose free from the direction and control of Advanced Group and the client. While you may leave the premises, you may only do so if you can return to your workstation on time. You must be provided with a reasonable opportunity to take uninterrupted 10-minute rest periods, and you may not be impeded or discouraged from taking them. Rest periods count as hours worked and are paid.

If due to work demands, you are not authorized or permitted to take one or more rest breaks, you must immediately report this to your Recruiter and supervisor. Your supervisor will either make arrangements for you to take your duty-free rest break or will report the missed rest break to Advanced Group. If Advanced Group or the client is responsible for non-exempt Consultant being unable to take a rest period in accordance with this policy, the Consultant will be paid one additional hour of pay for that day.

Rest period schedules will vary from client to client based on business hours and work schedules. Your supervisor will coordinate your rest break schedule with you. Please take your breaks only during your scheduled time. The following chart shows the number of rest breaks available based on the hours of work:

Hours of Work	# of Rest Breaks
0-< 3.5	0
3.5-6.0	1
>6.0-10.0	2
>10.0-14.0	3

#### **Overtime**

Overtime compensation is paid to all non-exempt Consultants at the following rates:

- One and a half (1½) times the regular rate of pay for all hours worked over eight (8) in a workday.
- One and a half (1½) times the regular rate of pay for the first eight (8) hours worked on the seventh consecutive day worked in a single workweek.
- Two (2) times the regular rate of pay for all hours worked over twelve (12) in a workday.
- Two (2) times the regular rate of pay for all hours worked over eight on the seventh consecutive day worked in a single workweek.

• One and a half (1½) times the regular rate of pay for all hours worked over forty (40) regular hours in a workweek.

#### **School Leave (Suspension)**

If it becomes necessary for you as the parent or guardian of a child to attend the child's school to discuss possible suspension, you should alert your Recruiter as soon as possible. Pursuant to California Labor Code Section 230.7, no discriminatory action will be taken against you for taking time off for this purpose.

#### **Time Off for School Activities**

If you are a parent, guardian or grandparent with custody of a child in kindergarten or grades 1-12, inclusive, and you wish to take time off to visit the school of your child for a school activity, you may take off up to eight hours each calendar month (up to a maximum of 40 hours each school year), per child, provided you give reasonable notice to the Company of the planned absence. The Company requires documentation from the school noting the date and time of your visit. If both parents of a child work for the Company, only one parent - the first to provide notice - may take the time off, unless the Company approves both parents taking time off simultaneously. You must use existing PTO or personal leave for purpose of the absence.

#### **Civic Duties**

We encourage each of our Consultants to accept their civic responsibilities.

- Jury Duty: If you receive a notice for jury duty, please notify your Recruiter immediately. If you are released from jury service before the end of your regular scheduled shift or are not asked to serve on a jury panel, you are expected to call your Recruiter as soon as possible and report to work if requested. You must bring a statement indicating the length of jury time upon your return. Time off for jury duty is unpaid for non-exempt Consultants and for exempt Consultants who perform no work during a full week of jury service. Exempt Consultants will receive their full salary for the week while on jury service if they perform any work during the week. Please work with your Recruiter so coverage arrangements can be made. Should you have any questions, please contact your Recruiter.
- Voting: We want every Consultant to have the opportunity to vote in every election. The Company complies with the voting laws for each state. Generally, there will be sufficient time to vote either before or after your scheduled shift. If you do not have sufficient time to vote during non-working hours, you may arrange to take up to two hours off from work with pay either at the beginning or end of your shift. To receive time off for voting, you must obtain approval in advance from your Recruiter. Please work with your Recruiter so coverage arrangements can be made. Should you have any questions, please contact your Recruiter. The Company reserves the right to request a copy of your voter's receipt following any time off to vote.

#### Leave for Victims of Crime, Domestic Violence & Sexual Assault

To the extent required by law, a Consultant who is the victim of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking may receive unpaid leave to obtain or attempt to obtain any relief, including a temporary restraining order, restraining order or other injunctive relief, or to help ensure the health, safety or welfare of the victim or the victim's child. In addition, a Consultant who is a crime or abuse victim may take time off to: 1) seek medical attention for injuries caused by crime or abuse; 2) obtain services from a

domestic violence shelter, program, rape crisis center or victim services organization or agency as the result of the crime or abuse; 3) obtain psychological counseling or mental health services related to an experience of crime or abuse; or 4) participate in safety planning and take other actions, such as relocation, to protect against future crime and abuse. A Consultant who is the victim of a crime may also take time off to attend judicial proceedings related to the crime.

To take this leave, the Consultant must provide the Company with reasonable advance notice of the leave. If advanced notice is not possible, the Consultant must provide the Company with the following certification within a reasonable time after the absence: 1) a police report showing that the Consultant was a victim; or 2) a court order protecting the Consultant from the perpetrator or other evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that the Consultant appeared in court; 3) documentation from a licensed medical professional, domestic violence or sexual assault victim advocate, health care provider, or counselor showing that the Consultant's absence was due to treatment or receiving services for physical or mental injuries or abuse resulting in victimization from the crime or abuse; or 4) any other form of documentation that reasonably verified that the crime or abuse occurred, including a written statement signed by the Consultant or an individual acting on the Consultant's behalf, certifying that the absence is for a purpose authorized under this policy.

To the extent required by law, the Company will provide reasonable accommodations to a Consultant who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking if the Consultant requests an accommodation for the Consultant's safety while at work.

The Consultant may choose to use any accrued paid sick leave, vacation or other paid time off time, if available, for an absence described above.

#### California Family Rights Act (CFRA)

The CFRA allows eligible employees up to twelve (12) weeks of leave in a twelve (12) month period for the birth of a child, the adoption of a child, or the placement of a child in foster care. If both FMLA and CFRA cover a particular circumstance, the leaves will run concurrently. The CFRA and FMLA are generally similar. Key differences between the FMLA and CFRA are explained below. The greater protections of CFRA will apply.

#### Eligibility for CFRA Leave

Consultants are eligible for CFRA leave if they have been employed with the Company for at least twelve (12) months and have worked for the Company at least 1,250 hours in the preceding 12 months. Unlike the FMLA, Consultants who meet these requirements are eligible for CFRA leave regardless of the number of employees working at the Consultant's office or work location.

#### Qualified Reasons for CFRA Leave

An eligible Consultant is entitled to CFRA leave for any of the following qualified reasons:

- (a) The birth of the Consultant's child and to care for the newborn child;
- (b) The placement of a child with the Consultant for adoption or foster care;
- (c) To care for the Consultant's child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, spouse or

domestic partner with a serious health condition;

- (d) Because of the Consultant's own serious health condition that makes the Consultant unable to perform the functions of their job, except for leave taken for disability due to pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions (which is covered by pregnancy disability leave described below); and
- (e) Because of a qualifying exigency related to the covered active duty or call to covered active duty of a Consultant's spouse, domestic partner, child, or parent in the Armed Forces of the United States, as specified in Section 3302.2 of the California Unemployment Insurance Code.

#### **CFRA Impact on the Key Consultant Limitation**

The FMLA provides that the Company may deny job restoration to certain Consultants known as "key Consultant," if such denial is necessary to prevent substantial and grievous economic injury to the Company's operations. The key Consultant limitation only applies to FMLA. It does not apply to CFRA.

#### Both Parents Employed by the Company

If the Company employs both parents of a child, each eligible parent may separately take up to 12 workweeks of CFRA leave to bond with a new child or care for a child with a serious health condition.

#### **Pregnancy Disability Leave (PDL)**

Consultants who are disabled by pregnancy, childbirth or related medical condition are eligible to take Pregnancy Disability Leave (PDL). Consultants who are affected by pregnancy or related medical condition are also eligible to transfer to a less strenuous or hazardous position or duties if such transfer is medically advisable.

#### **Notice and Medical Certification**

You must provide at least verbal notice sufficient to make Advanced Group aware that you need PDL or a transfer and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave or transfer. If the need for a leave or transfer is foreseeable, you must provide notification at least 30 days before the PDL or transfer is to begin. If 30 days' advance notice is not possible, notice must be given as soon as practical. You must consult with Advanced Group to make a reasonable effort to schedule any planned medical treatment or supervision so as to minimize disruption to Advanced Group and the client's operations. However, any such scheduling, shall be subject to the approval of your healthcare provider.

As a condition of granting PDL, you must provide Advanced Group with a medical certification from your healthcare provider. The certification should include:

- The date on which you became disabled due to pregnancy or the date of medical advisability for transfer or reasonable accommodation;
- The probable duration of the period(s) of disability or the period(s) for the advisability of the transfer or reasonable accommodation; and
- A statement that, due to the disability, you are unable to work at all or to perform one or more of the essential functions of your position, without undue risk to yourself, the successful completion of your pregnancy, or to other persons or a statement that, due to your pregnancy, the transfer or reasonable accommodation is medically advisable.

#### **Duration**

Duration of the leave is determined by the advice of your physician. If you are disabled by pregnancy, you may take up to four (4) months leave due to a pregnancy-related disability. Part-time Consultants are

entitled to leave on a pro-rata basis. The four months of leave include any period of time for actual disability caused by your pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical condition. This includes leave for severe morning sickness and for prenatal care. PDL may be taken intermittently, or on a reduced-hours schedule, as medically necessary.

#### **Temporary Transfers and Accommodations**

You may be provided with a reasonable accommodation for pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions if you so request and provide Advanced Group with medical certification from your healthcare provider. You may be provided with a temporary transfer to a less strenuous or hazardous position or to less strenuous or hazardous duties if you request such a transfer and if the request is supported by a proper medical certification and can be reasonably accommodated. The transferred Consultant will receive the pay that accompanies the job, as is the case with any other transfer due to temporary health reasons.

If it is medically advisable for you to take intermittent leave or leave on a reduced work schedule and it is foreseeable based on planned medical treatment because of pregnancy, Advanced Group may require you to transfer temporarily to an available alternative position or assignment. This alternative position or assignment will have the equivalent rate of pay and benefits, you must be qualified for the position or assignment, and it must better accommodate recurring periods of leave than your regular position or assignment. It does not have to have equivalent duties. Transfer to an alternative position may include altering an existing job to accommodate better your need for intermittent leave or a reduced work schedule.

#### **Maintenance of Health Benefits**

If you and/or your family participate in our group health plan, Advanced Group will maintain coverage under the plan during your approved PDL on the same terms as if you had continued to work. Advanced Group will continue to pay its portion of health plan premiums for a period up to four months and you must make arrangements to pay your share of health plan premiums while on leave. As explained below, if you are also eligible for CFRA leave, Advanced Group will also continue to pay its portion of health plan premiums during the period of CFRA leave.

The full insurance premium payment is due no later than the 10th day of each month. If the full insurance payment is not received by this deadline, you will be offered COBRA coverage.

Advanced Group may recover the premiums it paid on your behalf if you fail to return from PDL, and your failure to return from PDL is for reasons other than: (i) your taking leave protected under the FMLA/CFRA, or (ii) the continuance, recurrence or onset of further pregnancy or childbirth related disability, or other circumstances beyond your control.

**Note:** Through the last day of the calendar month in which your leave begins, Advanced Group will continue health plan coverage on the same terms as if you had continued to work.

#### Paid Time Off During Leave

You must use any accrued sick time during PDL as a supplement to any disability payments. In addition, you will not accrue benefits, including sick time and holidays during any period of unpaid PDL.

#### Leave Return

As a condition of your return from PDL or transfer, you must obtain a release to return to work from your healthcare provider stating you are able to resume your original job duties.

#### Failure to Return After PDL

If you fail to return to work as scheduled after PDL leave and you fail to obtain an extension of the leave, Advanced Group may presume that you do not intend to return to work and have voluntarily terminated your employment. However, Advanced Group will provide accommodative leaves of absence in accordance with applicable federal and state disability leave laws.

Advanced Group is committed to complying with the laws protecting qualified individuals with disabilities. Advanced Group will provide a reasonable accommodation for any known physical or mental disability of a qualified individual with a disability to the extent required by law, provided the requested accommodation does not create an undue hardship and/or does not pose a direct threat to the health or safety of others in the workplace and/or to the individual. Such accommodation may include a leave of absence which may be longer than the leave required by PDL.

#### PDL, FMLA, and CFRA

If you are eligible for FMLA, the first 12 weeks of the PDL leave shall be deemed to be FMLA leave, but time taken for PDL will not count against the maximum 12 weeks of leave available under the California Family Rights Act (CFRA). After the PDL ends, an additional period of up to 12 weeks of leave may be available under the CFRA for bonding with the new child within the first 12 months after the birth, or for any other purposes allowed under the CFRA. The combined total of PDL and CFRA leave for eligible Consultants shall not exceed four months plus 12 weeks. Employer-provided health benefits will be continued during the periods of pregnancy disability leave and available CFRA leave, not to exceed four months plus 12 weeks, at the same level and under the same conditions that coverage would have been provided if you had not taken a leave. Thereafter, you may continue your health insurance benefits in accordance with plan terms at your own expense during the remainder of your leave.

## **Consultant Handbook Acknowledgment & Receipt**

#### I have received my copy of the Consultant Handbook

I have read and have in my possession a copy of Advanced Group's Consultant Handbook. I fully understand the content and agree to work within its framework. I understand that the handbook and all other written and oral materials provided to me are intended for informational purposes only. Neither it, our company practices, nor any other communications create an employment contract or term. I understand that the policies and benefits, both in the handbook and those communicated to me in any other fashion, are subject to interpretation, review, and change by management at any time without notice. In no event shall I have a vested right in the continuation of any of such policies and benefits.

I understand that my employment is terminable at-will, either by myself or Advanced Group, regardless of the length of my employment or the granting of benefits of any kind, including but not limited to benefits which provide for vesting based upon length of employment. I further understand that no contract of employment other than "at-will" has been expressed or implied, and that no circumstances arising out of my employment will alter my "at-will" employment relationship unless expressed in writing, with the understanding specifically set forth and signed by myself and the CEO of Advanced Group.

I have received the handbook and I understand that it is my responsibility to comply with the policies and procedures contained in this handbook and any revisions made to it, and that I am responsible to comply with all client rules and procedures applicable to me during my assignment with the client. I understand that my failure to abide by the policies and procedures contained in this handbook or at the client site may result in disciplinary action, up to and including immediate termination of employment.

Name (print)

Signature

Date